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Coakley Bay, which lies 4.1 miles east of Christiansted, St.Croix, 
is an early 19th century site now in ruin comprising several build­ 
ings important to a sugar plantation the great house, grinding mill, 
cookhouse, windmill for drawing water, and partial remains of struc­ 
tures that must have included the sugar factory.

The grinding mill, located at the northern-most point in the com- s!
plex, is the typical tapering drum (or "cone") shape found on cane ^
plantations. It is constructed of rubble masonry and ballast brick k\ 
and is about 30' high with a diameter of 26'10", and three foot thick^
walls measured at the window openings. The mill has a series of ^
arched openings with the main entrance to the raised grinding floor ^
through a tall narrow arch to the south. A window is placed in the ^
east wall. All the window openings and the entrance arch are faced §
on the interior and exterior, and on the inside curve of the arches  
with coursed, gauged brick. There is no applied ornamentation to §
the exterior. In the interior, recessed vertical reveals, which ^
originally contained the top of the gears in the mill machinery, ^
are located immediately under the top of the walls. >

The great house lies about 150' to the southeast of the mill. It 
is a one-story building with the foundation and main floor construc­ 
ted of red ballast and yellow brick. The dimensions of the rectan­ 
gle are 70' by 36' with the long side of the house on the east-west 
axis. The house measures seven bays by four bays. The main entrance 
is through an enclosed porch on the south facade, with two secondary 
entrances located on the north and one on the west facade. The porch 
is enclosed by an arcaded screen wall measuring three bays with 
brick columns and arches. Access to the porch from the slightly 
lower southern grade is by a staircase with fanning walls   the 
typical West Indian "welcoming arms" type. All windows and doors 
have flat heads, wood casings with recessed sills and no drip caps. 
The windows are fitted with shutters attached with hardware that 
includes wrought drive pintles and shutter hooks.

The interior of the house is entirely wood frame, and dates from 
a later stage of construction, probably the 1920's. It is not 
immediately evident how the original rooms were disposed in the 
interior, but presently there is a central hall plan with three 
rooms on either side, closed off on the east end by two small cen­ 
tral rooms flanked by two larger rooms. The walls are simpie wood 
panels serving as partitions with the tops of the panels ending short 
of the ceiling to provide for air circulation. The ceiling has been 
replaced due to hurricane damage and is currently the conventional 
West Indian "tray", of plank construction with sharply angled corners* 
The timber trusses are exposed.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The early 19th century ruins at Coakley Bay are a comprehensive col­ 
lection of the buildings necessary to sugar production together with 
a great house. The site includes some fine examples of the typical 
plantation buildings, among which the best preserved are the grinding 
mill, and a windmill for drawing water.

Coakley Bay was named for John Coakley, Sr., recorded as owner of 
the plantation in 1749, An earlier French name for the estate was 
"Grande Anse". The existing ruins probably were constructed in the 
early 19th century during the dominance of sugar in the Cruzan econ­ 
omy. A capstone dated 1810 is located on the windmill used to draw 
water.

The plantation probably ceased production in the late 19th century 
with the general decline of the sugar industry.
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The Virgin Islands Government Department of Conservation and Cul­ 
tural Affairs is considering acquisition of the Coakley Bay site 
in order to establish an historic park in association with a 
recreation facility. The government intends to stabilize the 
ruins and provide an historic interpretation program.
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Ruins of a small cookhouse of rubble masonry lie to the southwest 
of the great house.

Other structures associated with the plantation are located along 
an unpaved road branching to the west from the unpaved entrance road 
leading to the mill and great house. The structure furthest out on 
the branch road, and the only one for which the original use,-is 
clearly evident, is the windmill for drawing water. It is about 
20' high with an exterior staircase winding up the side to the top 
of the walls. There is a capstone marked "1810", and a masonry 
trough behind the mill that was used to water the animals of the 
plantation.

Near the well to the east lies a building, probably part of the 
factory, with only sections of wall remaining. The south wall is 
in the best condition and is about 10' high, of rubble masonry 
construction capped with brick. A continuous band runs about a foot 
from the top of the wall, and there is a single thick pinnacle 
with a pointed cap on the southeast corner. There are unidentifiable 
ruins across the branch road between the windmill for drawing water 
and the great house.
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Geographic Coordinates

A. 17° 45' 45" north - 64° 38' 14" west 

B. 17° 45 J 34" north - 64° 38' 11" west 

C. 17° 45' 33" north - 64° 38' 42" west 

D. 17° 45' 48" north - 64° 38' 46" west

Verbal Boundary Description

The east boundary of the Coakley Bay site begins at 
a point 17° 45' 45" north - 64° 38' 14" west (A) and runs 1000' 
southeast to 17° 45' 34" north - 64° 38' 11" west (B). From 
here the line runs west to East End Road and continues on the 
north side of East End Road to a point 17° 45' 33" north - 
64° 38' 42" (C), a distance of 2900'. From here the boundary 
runs northwest 1600' to a point 17° 45' 48" north - 64° 38' 46" 
west (D). From here it follows east to the beginning point of 
the boundary.




